A BIM-BASED FRAMEWORK FOR AUTOMATION IN CONSTRUCTION QUALITY CONTROL REPORTING AND REPOSITORY

By

RANA MUHAMMAD IRFAN ANWAR

(NUST2017MSCE&M090000205861)

Master of Science

In

Construction Engineering and Management



Department of Construction Engineering and Management

School of Civil and Environmental Engineering (SCEE)

National University of Sciences and Technology (NUST),

Islamabad, Pakistan

(2021)

This is to certify that the

thesis titled

A BIM-BASED FRAMEWORK FOR AUTOMATION IN CONSTRUCTION QUALITY CONTROL REPORTING AND REPOSITORY

Submitted by

RANA MUHAMMAD IRFAN ANWAR

(NUST2017MSCE&M090000205861)

has been accepted towards the partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Construction Engineering and Management

Dr. Muhammad Usman Hassan

Supervisor / Assistant Professor Department of Construction Engineering and Management School of Civil and Environmental Engineering (SCEE) National University of Sciences and Technology (NUST)

THESIS ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Certified that final copy of MS thesis written by <u>Rana Muhammad Irfan Anwar</u> (Registration No. <u>NUST2017MSCE&M090000205861</u>), of <u>PG Wing – SCEE</u> has been vetted by undersigned, found complete in all respects as per NUST Statutes / Regulations, is free of plagiarism, errors, and mistakes and is accepted as partial fulfillment for the award of MS/MPhil degree. It is further certified that necessary amendments as pointed out by GEC members of the scholar have also been incorporated in the said thesis.

Signature:	
Name of Supervisor:	Dr. Muhammad Usman Hassan
Date:	

Signature (HOD): ______
Date: _____

Signature (Dean/Principal):	
Date:	

DEDICATED

ТО

MY LOVING PARENTS, SISTERS AND FRIENDS

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I, Rana Muhammad Irfan Anwar, am thankful to Allah Almighty, for giving me the strength to carry out the research work. I am obliged to my advisor, Dr. Muhammad Usman Hassan, for his valuable guidance, time, and encouragement. I also owe acknowledgments to my family's patience, prayers, and support. Moreover, I am highly grateful to the esteemed faculty and administration of the Department of Construction Engineering and Management (CE&M) of the National University of Sciences and Technology (NUST), Pakistan, for giving the much-needed technical inputs, assistance, and resources for the thesis work.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNO	OWLEDGMENTS	iv
LIST O	F ABBREVIATIONS	. vii
LIST O	F FIGURES	viii
LIST O	F TABLES	ix
ABSTR	ACT	X
1. IN	TRODUCTION	1
1.1.	PREVIOUS WORK	2
1.2.	PROBLEM STATEMENT	3
1.3.	OBJECTIVES	4
1.4.	SIGNIFICANCE	4
1.5.	THESIS OVERVIEW	5
2. LI	TERATURE REVIEW	6
2.1	CONSTRUCTION QUALITY	6
2.2	CONSTRUCTION QUALITY CONTROL	6
2.3	ISSUES AND INEFFICIENCIES	7
2.4	LITERATURE SCORE AND RANKING OF ISSUES	. 11
2.5	AUTOMATION IN MANUAL WORK AND DATA	. 12
2.6	BENEFITS OF AUTOMATION AND BIM	. 13
2.7	ISSUES VS BENEFITS MATRIX	. 14
2.8	RANKING OF BENEFITS	. 16
2.9	BUILDING INFORMATION MODELLING	. 18
2.9	D.2 Benefits of BIM	. 18
2.9	D.3 BIM & Construction Quality	. 19
2.10	SOFTWARE AND TOOLS USED IN RESEARCH	. 20
2.1	0.1 Autodesk Revit	. 20
2.1	0.2 Quick Response Code (QR-Code)	. 21
2.1	0.3 Wamp Server and MariaDB (RDBMS)	. 21
3. RE	ESEARCH METHODOLOGY	. 23
3.1	INTRODUCTION	. 23
3.2	RESEARCH DESIGN	. 23
3.3	FRAMEWORK	. 25
4. SY	STEM PROTOTYPE	. 28
4.1	INTRODUCTION	. 28
4.2	BIM-QRC	. 28
4.2	2.1 Create Parameters	. 28
4.2	2.2 Element IDs	. 30
4.2	2.3 Concrete Strength	. 31
4.2	2.4 Generate QRC	. 33
4.3	ACQCR	. 35

4.4	VISUALIZE	
4.5	BIM-QRC TOOLBAR	
5. EV	ALUATION AND RESULTS	
5.1	CASE STUDY	
5.2	EVALUATION RESULTS	
5.2	2.1 Results of Semi-Structured Interviews	
5.2	2.2 Experts Feedback on The System's Potential	
5.2	2.3 Discussion on Experts Scores	
6. CO	ONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	
6.1	CONCLUSION	
6.2	LIMITATIONS	
6.3	FUTURE RECOMMENDATIONS	
REFER	ENCES	

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Building Information Technology	BIM
Architecture, Engineering, Construction and Owner	AECO
Quality Management System	QMS
Recurrent Neural Network	RNN
Long Short-Term Memory	LSTM
Quality Control	QC
Quick Response Code	QRC
Comma Separated Values File	CSV
Geographic Information System	GIS
Radio Frequency Identification	RFID
Automated Construction Quality Control Repository	ACQCR
Database Management System	DBMS
Relative Database Management System	RDBMS
Structured Query Language	SQL
Light Detection and Ranging	LiDAR
Indoor Positioning System	IPS
Application Programming Interface	API

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 Building Information Modelling	19
Figure 2 Methodology	24
Figure 3 Framework	25
Figure 4 Dated QR-Codes	26
Figure 5 BIM-QRC Framework	28
Figure 6 Dynamo script - Create Parameters	29
Figure 7 Insert Parameters	29
Figure 8 Parameters	30
Figure 9 IDs of Selection	30
Figure 10 Dynamo script – Element IDs	31
Figure 11 Dynamo script - Insert Concrete Strength (Psi)	32
Figure 12 Required Concrete Strength UI	32
Figure 13 QR-Code	33
Figure 14 Dynamo script - Generate QR-Codes	34
Figure 15 Generate QRC UI	34
Figure 16 Laboratory - Framework	35
Figure 17 PHP Programming	35
Figure 18 Webpage Interface	36
Figure 19 Database	37
Figure 20 PHP Programming	38
Figure 21 Dashboard	38
Figure 22 Visualization Framework	39
Figure 23 Visualize button UI	39
Figure 24 Dynamo script - Visualization	40
Figure 25 BIM-QRC toolbar	41
Figure 26 Case Study BIM Model	42
Figure 27 Inserting Concrete Strength	43
Figure 28 Inserted Concrete Strength	43
Figure 29 Inserting Project Schedule	44
Figure 30 Generated QR codes	44
Figure 31 Dashboard	45
Figure 32 Visualize Case Study	46
Figure 33 Experts' response on NEED	47
Figure 34 Experts' response on USABILITY	47
Figure 35 Experts' response on IMPLEMENTATION	48
Figure 36 Experts' response on EFFICIENCY	48

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 Reported Issues	8
Table 2 Compilation and literature analysis of issues	11
Table 3 Benefits Reported Frequency	13
Table 4 Scored Benefits	15
Table 5 Ranked Benefits	16
Table 6 Scored Inefficiencies Groups	49
Table 7 Ranked Inefficiencies Groups	49

ABSTRACT

The recent modernization of the construction industry throughout the world has made quality control a key aspect. In any construction project, many onsite and offsite laboratory tests and inspections are carried out to ensure quality. Traditionally, responses and reports are kept in as records yielding huge bundles and spanning volumes. This can further lead to issues such as poor data maintenance, loss of information, difficulty in information update and sharing, etc. Due to advances in computing such as Building Information Modelling (BIM), the construction industry has leaped forward tremendously through automation. In today's technologically advanced world, the use of automation strategies has become an integral part of any field of study. Automation makes the whole reporting, recording, and visualization process effective and efficient saving useful time and cost. This thesis proposes a new system "Quality Information Management based on Building Information Modeling (QIM-BIM)" for automation in traditional practices of construction quality control (QC) reporting and repository using BIM. The system generates QR-Codes using 4D BIM for laboratory testing of concrete cylinders and stores all the produced results in a SQL-based database. It further aids in visualizing the failed concrete elements via BIM model. This study enhances the process of data collection and information management in construction quality control. It demonstrates how the developed system's integration makes the quality control process more accurate and efficient.

Chapter 1

INTRODUCTION

Definition of quality is a complex matter (Barrett, 2000). The assessment and conformance of any work to the given or preset standards is known as "Quality" which is crucial for the successful completion of any construction project (Battikha, 2002). The conformance to the required standards of quality in a construction project has been a problematic issue to overcome. The lack of efficient and in many cases no quality management procedures has led to the wastage of not only financial capital, but also much-needed resources be it human or material (Arditi, & Gunaydin, 2015). To be successful, it is vital for any Quality Management System (QMS) to consider paperwork and management of quality records (Ahmed et al., 2005). Quality test reports are generally rendered by the lab engineers and staff in manually documented reports. In addition, the traditional methods of tracking any kind of reports and inspection certificates are based totally on manual paper-based record management. This traditional system of quality reporting has many inherent inefficiencies. It is unreliable, inaccurate at times, and most importantly resourceintensive (L. C. Wang, 2008a). According to previous studies, approaches for quality control and surveying have not been efficient. These ineffective strategies infer data that is only specific to time and location. After data acquisition, manual techniques are used to generate and interpret acquired data which is time-consuming resulting in ineffective project schedule and design. Project managers use these design schedules and cannot provide accurate and complete information in the workplace. Manual data interpretation limits the ability to properly manage defects and actively control construction projects (Akinci et al., 2006). Methods containing their own technological and economic backgrounds should be used in developing countries to improve the quality of construction projects (Abdel-Razek, 1998). Advanced construction technology such as mechanization and industrialization which could revolutionize the process of quality management depends on various factors. These, among others, include the coordination among various operators and work components, allocation of responsibility, sequence of different activities, time taken from system setup and its use, and the sheer quantity of operators and their respective qualification (Tam et al., 2000).

1.1. PREVIOUS WORK

BIM with the integration of LiDAR can be used for the collection of quality information and its processing for construction quality control in real-time (J. Wang et al., 2015a). IPS with the help of BIM can be used for effective and integrated management of construction quality control (Ma et al., 2018). A BIM-based coordinated quality administration system that consolidates ideas, can be used to decrease the quality defective events on construction projects and reduces quality defects in construction projects which in result reduce cost, better resource utilization, fewer delays, and improved quality of construction projects (Achkar, 2017a). Using Autodesk Revit API, a system can be developed which will display onsite quality defects in the 3D model, and such a system will improve information sharing and will efficiently document construction quality defects (Y.-M. Cheng, 2018a). The BIM 360 field is an advanced technology that could enhance the success of construction project quality administration and is another technique to control project quality in Vietnam to replace the conventional methods. A system for contractors that makes sure the successful quality assurance is elegantly and simply. With help of this innovative system project quality administration and update of the project, progress should be possible at the time and place of choice. Further, it can improve effective management, be less expensive, and increased competition (Nguyen et al., 2018a). A BIM-based framework can be an effective tool for the management of construction data, choosing the information related to the project quality, and doing information selection and rejection. Utilizing word cloud visualization and cluster analysis and converting unstructured data into structured data. Also utilizing Recurrent neural networks and long short-term memory RNN-LSTM to anticipate the quality issues of the construction project, for example, steel bars, formworks, concrete, and brickwork (D. Wang et al., 2018). A BIM-based quality control system prototype can record onsite quality defects and utilizing the Autodesk Revit API they can be visualized. It is an approach to detecting, recording, and displaying onsite quality defects in a 3D model. The system can efficiently store all the data which can be later printed or can be used to share information making communications better (Y.-M. Cheng, 2018b) A mobile device-based system can be used for the management of construction sites with two main purposes of sharing information and work management. The system can also link information with the location and is very efficient and effective in terms of communication among various construction site personnel on their own mobile devices. (C. Kim et al., 2011). BIM is very dominant in monitoring real-time progress, using software such as BIM 360 Field, which is quite effective. A BIM-based tool provides real-time progress and is very helpful in monitoring time, cost, and quality management (Matthews et al., 2015). There is huge potential for BIM in construction quality management with the adoption of an integrated approach of using a relational database and IFC-based system adoption, this increases the overall performance of the BIM model and database in construction quality control (Xu et al., 2018).

This research is aimed at utilizing BIM and its supported visual programming software i.e., Dynamo with the help of a web-based database for improving inefficiencies in traditional construction quality control repository.

1.2.PROBLEM STATEMENT

Construction quality control systems are quite expensive, they are affected by the involved stakeholders, and they tend to create a lot of paperwork (Griffith, 2000). Traditional construction quality control methods based on on-site visits and 2D design drawings are time-consuming, laborious, and prone to errors (Akinci et al., 2006). Quality test reports are normally created by lab engineers and staff in manually documented reports. In addition, the traditional ways of tracking a specific report or inspection certificate are completely manual paper-based handheld record management. This traditional system of quality reporting has quite some inefficiencies which are unreliable, inaccurate, and are resource-intensive (L. C. Wang, 2008b). Many studies indicate that current approaches for quality control are not efficient hence these ineffective methods are utilized to generate and interpret data which result consumes more time and delays the project. Project managers do not have complete information hence handheld manual data interpretation restricts the proper management and control of construction projects (Akinci et al., 2006). In a construction project, quality control and early defect detection are important to reduce delays and cost overruns by integrating robotics and automation for real-time quality control (Martinez et al., 2019). To improve the construction projects' quality control, techniques should be utilized which are technologically strong (Abdel-Razek, 1998). Advanced technologies in construction quality control can vastly improve the quality management of construction projects (Tam et al., 2000). An automated document management system can facilitate a project (Eloranta et al., 2001). The computer program simplifies and reduces the time of data capture compared to the currently used paper-based reporting system (Fernandez et al., 2003a). The studies discussed here have tried to overcome the issues of traditional practices adopted in construction quality control with techniques like integration of robotics and automation with real-time monitoring, automated document management system. In brief, BIM is an emerging technology with vast field of application, and it has not been used to integrate automation in construction quality control reporting and repository.

Hence the question arises "Can BIM help in automation and improvement of construction quality control reporting and repository by catering for incurring issues and inefficiencies in traditional practices".

1.3.OBJECTIVES

- To identify the inefficiencies in traditional construction quality control repository.
- To develop a BIM-based framework for automation in a quality control repository.
- To evaluate the developed framework.

1.4.SIGNIFICANCE

Pakistan is a country where construction quality has been neglected over decades, but now the trend is shifting as people are getting aware of the need for construction quality implementation on site. As construction quality cost is very high in Pakistan and there are limited interactive methods to effectively engage construction workers to improve project quality. This study undertaken would help our construction quality industry to automate the construction quality control process more effectively in terms of performance and efficiency.

1.5.THESIS OVERVIEW

In this thesis, Chapter 1 includes the introduction in detail, the problem statement with the research gap, the objectives of this research, and the significance of this thesis in our industry. Chapter 2 consists of the theory behind the proposed methodology. It includes all the details of the theory involved in this thesis and the enlisted issues and inefficiencies that occur in our traditional practices of construction quality control reporting and repository. Chapter 3 involves the methodology adopted to acquire the data involving the experimental paradigm and workflow and the development of the framework with the complete working of the framework. Chapter 4 describes the developed system which is based on the devised framework. Also, the complete working of the system. Chapter 5 consists of the evaluation and results and the analysis of results obtained, and a discussion in detail. Chapter 6 consists of a conclusion and briefly explains the future work.

Chapter 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

The development of any country depends upon various major contributors and the construction sector is one of them (Nawaz et al., 2013). All the construction projects are novel since they provide us with the business creation and fulfillment of human fundamental needs (Khelifi & Hesham, 2016). The development of the construction industry depends on the quality of construction projects (D.Ashokkumar, 2014).

2.1 CONSTRUCTION QUALITY

The construction quality can be defined as the fulfillment of sets of rules and requirements provided by the owner and designer (Rajiv & Harinath, 2018). In the successful completion of any construction project, proper quality management is essential (Nguyen et al., 2018a). The construction project quality directly impacts the steady turn of events and adequacy of the financial components of the public economy (Quyen et al., 2017). In construction projects, quality management must be adopted throughout the construction for better and complete quality control (L. C. Wang, 2008a). In many construction projects, there are issues like delays in schedule and cost overruns, they can be minimized and mitigated if proper quality control is performed. (Martinez et al., 2019).

2.2 CONSTRUCTION QUALITY CONTROL

Construction quality control can be defined as a set of processes that make sure if compliance with the defined standards is being met (Hendrickson, 2008). The act of conveying information through documents containing quality control data can be described as a quality control report. Traditional approaches for construction quality reporting are not helpful, as they provide location-specific data and the time of work taking place, also the produced information and data are interpreted by labor and are not linked with the project design model and project schedule. As a result, project and quality control do not get total and precise data about work set up. This does hinder their capabilities to easily recognize and manage construction quality defects, and effectively control and manage construction projects (Akinci et al., 2006).

2.3 ISSUES AND INEFFICIENCIES

In any country there are substantial contributors towards its Gross Domestic Product and construction industry is one of those major sectors and as time is passing by it is getting bigger and bigger quickly but unfortunately, it encounters various issues like uncertainty, less productivity, inappropriate quality, and lack quality standards (Bakar et al., 2011). Construction quality systems are accused to be very costly, affected by involved parties and they have a huge potential for creating spanning volumes of paperwork (Griffith, 2000). There is a huge amount of information sharing and transfer that takes place during the construction of a project as it is an information-intensive industry (Chen & Kamara, 2011).

In a construction project information collection, its reporting and managing it becomes quite difficult as multiple re-drawing and re-keying of information take place. In the end, all of this results in wastage of time, unpredicted costs, various errors, and miscommunication, and thus rework takes place, which is one of the main factors of time and cost overruns in construction projects (P. E. D. Love, 2002). In the construction industry information technology (IT) is not being utilized effectively in information communication and sharing which increases the amount of rework (P. E. d. Love, 2002).

Construction organizations are of various categories with different capabilities in the workforce, machinery, and technology hence it becomes difficult to manage construction project information especially information related to costs. Many of these construction organizations do not have any system to collect or process cost-related information (P. E. D. Love & Irani, 2003). Normally in construction practices, there are some methods for construction quality assurance, but they are dependent upon site visits, comparison of designs drawings, validation of specifications, etc., do consume time, require more labor, and are error-prone (Akinci et al., 2006).

Issues identified from the literature are illustrated below in Table 1 Reported Issues:

Sr.	Issues	Reported	Authors	
No.		Frequency		
1	Paper-based data and	22	Bai, 2013; Becerik-gerber et al.,	
	manual work		2012; Cheng, 2018b, 2018a;	
			Chin-Keng, 2011; East et al.,	
			2013; Eloranta et al., 2001;	
			Fernandez et al., 2003; Griffith,	
			2000; Haupt & Whiteman, 2004;	
			Lin et al., 2014; Lin & Su, 2013;	
			Ma et al., 2008, 2018; Matthews	
			et al., 2015; Nguyen et al., 2018;	
			Roh et al., 2011; Zhiliang et al.,	
			2005; Zhou & El-Gohary, 2016)	
2	Lack of conceptual	14	(Akinci et al., 2006; YM.	
	reporting knowledge and		Cheng, 2018a; Chin et al., 2004;	
	unreliable methods		Chin-Keng, 2011; Lin & Su,	
			2013; P. E. D. Love & Irani,	
			2003; Ma et al., 2008, 2018;	
			Mani et al., 2009; Matthews et	
			al., 2015; Roh et al., 2011; L. C.	
			Wang, 2008b; Zhiliang et al.,	
			2005)	
3	Inefficient and difficult	10	(Becerik-gerber et al., 2012;	
	information update		Eloranta et al., 2001; Lin et al.,	
			2014; Lin & Su, 2013; Ma et al.,	
			2018; Nguyen et al., 2018b; L.	
			C. Wang, 2008b; Zhou & El-	
			Gohary, 2016)	
4	Labor intensive and	21	(Achkar, 2017; Becerik-gerber et	
	bulking documents		al., 2012; YM. Cheng, 2018a;	

Table 1 Reported Issues

			Y. M. Cheng, 2018; Chin-Keng,
			2011; East et al., 2013; Eloranta
			et al., 2001; Fernandez et al.,
			2003; Griffith, 2000; Haupt &
			Whiteman, 2004; Lin et al.,
			2014; Lin & Su, 2013; Love &
			Irani, 2003; Ma et al., 2008,
			2018; Mani et al., 2009; Roh et
			al., 2011; Wang, 2008; Zhiliang
			et al., 2005; Zhou & El-Gohary,
			2016;Roh et al., 2011)
5	Prone to Errors	11	(Chin-Keng, 2011; East et al.,
			2013; Haupt & Whiteman, 2004;
			Lin et al., 2014; Lin & Su, 2013;
			P. E. D. Love & Irani, 2003; Ma
			et al., 2008, 2018; Mani et al.,
			2009; Matthews et al., 2015;
			Roh et al., 2011)
6	Paperwork yields less	8	(Akinci et al., 2006; Bai, 2013;
	quality		Eloranta et al., 2001; Fernandez
			et al., 2003b; Lin et al., 2014;
			Lin & Su, 2013; P. E. D. Love &
			Irani, 2003; Roh et al., 2011)
7	Complexity is more	6	(Bai, 2013; Chin-Keng, 2011;
			Eloranta et al., 2001; Fernandez
			et al., 2003b; Mani et al., 2009;
			Roh et al., 2011)
8	Poor information sharing	9	(Bai, 2013; Y. M. Cheng, 2018;
	and communication		Chin et al., 2004; Chin-Keng,
			2011; Eloranta et al., 2001; Lin
			et al., 2014; Lin & Su, 2013;

			Nguyen et al., 2018a; L. C.
			Wang, 2008b)
9	Paperwork consumes	15	(Y. M. Cheng, 2018; Chin et al.,
	time		2004; Fernandez et al., 2003b;
			Lin et al., 2014; Lin & Su, 2013;
			P. E. D. Love & Irani, 2003; Ma
			et al., 2008, 2018; Mani et al.,
			2009; Matthews et al., 2015;
			Nguyen et al., 2018a; Roh et al.,
			2011; L. C. Wang, 2008b;
			Zhiliang et al., 2005; Zhou & El-
			Gohary, 2016)
10	Inconvenient and hard	4	(Y. M. Cheng, 2018; YM.
	data maintenance		Cheng, 2018a; Lin et al., 2014;
			Lin & Su, 2013)
11	Difficult to refer	5	(Bai, 2013; Lin et al., 2014; Lin
	information due to		& Su, 2013; Matthews et al.,
	conflicts and errors in		2015; L. C. Wang, 2008b)
	documents		
12	Inadequate, ineffective,	11	(Akinci et al., 2006; Y. M.
	and unable to present		Cheng, 2018; East et al., 2013;
	complete information		Eloranta et al., 2001; Lin et al.,
			2014; Lin & Su, 2013; P. E. D.
			Love & Irani, 2003; Mani et al.,
			2009; Roh et al., 2011; L. C.
			Wang, 2008b)
13	Inefficiency and errors in	5	(Akinci et al., 2006; East et al.,
	information extraction		2013; Haupt & Whiteman, 2004;
			Mani et al., 2009; Zhou & El-
			Gohary, 2016)

14	Data loss and difficult	6	(Bai, 2013; East et al., 2013;
	data re-entry		Fernandez et al., 2003b; Lin et
			al., 2014; Lin & Su, 2013; L. C.
			Wang, 2008b)
15	Increased cost	7	(Bayazit & Karpak, 2007;
			Griffith, 2000; P. E. D. Love &
			Irani, 2003; Mani et al., 2009;
			Matthews et al., 2015; Zhou &
			El-Gohary, 2016)

2.4 LITERATURE SCORE AND RANKING OF ISSUES

The above table of issues and inefficiencies was scrutinized and analyzed for their literature score as the data was obtained both in qualitative and quantitative form and the results that were obtained are given in Table 2 Compilation and literature analysis of issues explained below.

Rank	Issues	Total	Normalized	Cumulative
		Literature	Score	Normalized
		Score		Score
1	Paper-based data and manual	1.46667	0.189003	0.189003
	work			
2	Labor Intensive and bulking	0.84	0.108247	0.297251
	documents			
3	Inefficient and difficult	0.66667	0.085911	0.383162
	information update			
4	Paperwork consumes time	0.6	0.07732	0.460481
5	Poor information sharing and	0.6	0.07732	0.537801
	communication			

Table 2 Compilation and literature analysis of issues

6	Lack of conceptual reporting	0.56	0.072165	0.609966
	knowledge and unreliable			
	methods			
7	Increased Cost	0.46667	0.060137	0.670103
8	Prone to errors	0.44	0.056701	0.726804
9	Inadequate, ineffective, and	0.44	0.056701	0.783505
	unable to present complete			
	info			
10	Complexity is more	0.4	0.051546	0.835052
11	Data loss and difficult data re-	0.4	0.051546	0.886598
	entry			
12	Paperwork yields less quality	0.32	0.041237	0.927835
13	Difficult to refer information	0.2	0.025773	0.953608
	due to conflicts and error in			
	documents			
14	Inefficiency and errors in	0.2	0.025773	0.979381
	information extraction			
15	Inconvenient and hard data	0.16	0.020619	1
	maintenance			

2.5 AUTOMATION IN MANUAL WORK AND DATA

In a construction project, efficient quality assurance and effective quality control are among the major factors that reduce the number of project delays and cost overruns. With the integration of automation and robotics in construction, quality control is becoming more effective and reliable with real-time monitoring. (Martinez et al., 2019). Building information modeling is relatively a new concept with a lot of capabilities and is helping in the construction of more complex projects (Kalyan et al., 2016). An automated document management system can facilitate the process of construction management (Eloranta et al., 2001). The systems that are digital and computer-based are making the work easy and reducing the time of data

capture when compared with traditional practices of paper-based reporting systems (Fernandez et al., 2003a).

2.6 BENEFITS OF AUTOMATION AND BIM

The application of newer technologies like automation and BIM in construction industry yield various benefits. An extensive literature review was carried out for benefits identification of introducing automation and BIM in traditional practices of construction quality control reporting and repository. The benefits identified from the literature are illustrated below in Table 3 Benefits Reported Frequency.

Sr. No.	Benefits	Reported
		Frequency
1	Web-based system	14
2	Electronic Data	11
3	Can present Multi-dimensional Data	9
4	Multi-disciplinary collaboration	9
5	Automatic generation of documents	9
6	Efficient Information Utilization	8
7	Reduces Errors	8
8	Effective tool	8
9	Ease of Information Update	7
10	Ease of Visualization	7
11	Information Generation	7
12	Integrate Data during Construction	6
13	Increased speed and accuracy	6
14	Improves Productivity	6
15	Data Maintenance	6
16	Increased Efficiency and Precision	6
17	Better Performance than manual work	6
18	Management of Construction Data	6

Table 3 Benefits Reported Frequency

19	Integration with other technologies like GPS,	6
	RFID etc.	
20	Information Sharing	5
21	Project Participants Interaction/Communication	5
22	Less Error and Omissions	5
23	Improved Decision Making by Project	5
	Management	
24	Precise and Consistent Information	5
25	Integration of Virtual and Real World	5
26	Real-time	5
27	Reduces Rework	4
28	Data Simulation and Optimization	4
29	Interoperability	4
30	Eliminates Conflicts	3
31	Minimize waste	3
32	Time Sequence	2
33	Time Saving	2
34	Less work force required	2
35	Reduces Cost	1
36	Lower Risk	1

2.7 ISSUES VS BENEFITS MATRIX

The identified benefits of introducing automation and BIM in traditional practices of construction quality control were compared with the issues and inefficiencies of traditional practices to check if the strategy to be adopted will address the incurring issues and inefficiencies. They were then scored with the number of issues and inefficiencies they were minimizing and mitigating in the reported literature. The scored benefits are given in Table 4 Scored Benefits.

Rank	Benefits	Score
1	Electronic Form (Automated Data)	11
2	Eliminates Conflicts	3
3	Reduces Rework	4
4	Efficient Information Utilization	8
5	Can present Multi-dimensional Data	9
6	Time Sequence	2
7	Web-based system	14
8	Information Sharing	5
9	Integrate Data during Construction	6
10	Ease of Information Update	7
11	Multi-disciplinary collaboration	9
12	Project Participants Interaction/Communication	5
13	Increased speed and accuracy	6
14	Ease of Visualization	7
15	Improves Productivity	6
16	Less Error and Omissions	5
17	Information Generation	7
18	Data Maintenance	6
19	Reduces Cost	1
20	Improved Decision Making by Project Management	5
21	Increased Efficiency and Precision	6
22	Reduces Errors	8
23	Lower Risk	1
24	Data Simulation and Optimization	4
25	Better Performance than manual work	6
26	Effective tool	8
27	Time Saving	2
28	Automatic generation of documents	9
29	Precise and Consistent Information	5

Table 4 Scored Benefits

30	Integration of Virtual and Real World	5
31	Interoperability	4
32	Management of Construction Data	6
33	Less work force required	2
34	Minimize waste	3
35	Real-time	5
36	Integration with other technologies like GPS, RFID, etc.	6

2.8 RANKING OF BENEFITS

The identified benefits of introducing automation and BIM in construction quality control were analyzed and were put against the issues and inefficiencies of traditional practices of construction quality control, and it was found out that all the major issues and inefficiencies are being covered by these realized benefits. Then the benefits were ranked in the order in which the benefits covering most issues and inefficiencies were given priority. The accordingly arranged benefits are given below in Table 5 Ranked Benefits.

Rank	Benefits	No. of Issues
		Covering
1	Web-based system	14
2	Electronic Form (Automated Data)	11
3	Can present Multi-dimensional Data	9
4	Multi-disciplinary collaboration	9
5	Automatic generation of documents	9
6	Efficient Information Utilization	8
7	Reduces Errors	8
8	Effective tool	8
9	Ease of Information Update	7
10	Ease of Visualization	7
11	Information Generation	7

Table 5 Ranked Benefits

12	Integrate Data during Construction	6
13	Increased speed and accuracy	6
14	Improves Productivity	6
15	Data Maintenance	6
16	Increased Efficiency and Precision	6
17	Better Performance than manual work	6
18	Management of Construction Data	6
19	Integration with other technologies like GPS,	6
	RFID etc.	
20	Information Sharing	5
21	Project Participants Interaction/Communication	5
22	Less Error and Omissions	5
23	Improved Decision Making by Project	5
	Management	
24	Precise and Consistent Information	5
25	Integration of Virtual and Real World	5
26	Real-time	5
27	Reduces Rework	4
28	Data Simulation and Optimization	4
29	Interoperability	4
30	Eliminates Conflicts	3
31	Minimize waste	3
32	Time Sequence	2
33	Time Saving	2
34	Less work force required	2
35	Reduces Cost	1
36	Lower Risk	1

2.9 BUILDING INFORMATION MODELLING

2.9.1 What is BIM?

Building Information Modeling (BIM) is a digital representation of the physical and functional characteristics of a facility. A BIM is a shared knowledge resource for information about a facility forming a reliable basis for decisions during its life cycle; defined as existing from earliest conception to demolition. A basic premise of BIM is a collaboration by different stakeholders at different phases of the life cycle of a facility to insert, extract, update or modify information in the BIM to support and reflect the roles of that stakeholder (NIBS, 2012).

In the architecture, engineering, and construction (AEC) industry, building information modeling (BIM) is one of the most recent and encouraging developments. Using the building information modeling, a precise virtual model of a building can be made (Azhar, 2011).

BIM can be used for visualization of the model, creation of drawings, construction code reviews, forensic analysis, facility management, estimation of cost, sequencing of construction, clash detection, etc (Azhar, 2011).

2.9.2 Benefits of BIM

There are various benefits of BIM. As mentioned by (Khan et al., 2008) building information modeling can provide faster more effective processes, better design, controlled whole-life costs, and environmental data, automated assembly, better customer service, and lifecycle data. Visual description of benefits is shown in Figure 1 (Reizgevičius et al., 2018).

18



Figure 1 Building Information Modelling

2.9.3 BIM & Construction Quality

Real-time dynamic information management and quality control have recently been studied in several recent research projects. In these studies, dynamic management or control was determined as a flexible, fast, and efficient response to the control of different activities on construction sites. Also, that can be information modeling (Infrastructure BIM) based, internet browser-based, independent of different terminals, and utilizes wireless and mobile information transfer (Kivimäki et al., 2015). BIM can be used in the creation of multidimensional models with space constraints, time, costs, materials, design, and manufacturing information, finishes, etc., and support real-time information sharing and collaboration. This information can be also be used with other technologies like augmented reality, virtual reality, radio-frequency identification (RFID), and even with 3D printers (Lester, 2014). Building information can be utilized in reducing the manual re-entering of data to a minimum and enabling the consequent re-use of digital information, laborious and error-prone work is avoided, which in turn increases productivity and quality in construction projects (Borrmann et al., 2018) BIM technology-based quality management framework is the focus of the platform to achieve the function, which is combined with AR technology to promote the construction quality control (Lou et al., 2017). In BIM, the model is a digital representation of a complex construction product and contains precise product information data, BIM model can also be used to obtain construction-oriented data and linking information that is crucial to manufacturing and quality control and assurance (Martinez et al., 2019). A quality control system using LiDAR-based real-time tracking, and integrated BIM-based real-time checking can automatically collect data, perform comparisons between the as-built data and as-planned BIM model, and assess construction quality on-site (J. Wang et al., 2015b). The utilization of BIM in the construction stage combines it with quality management to develop innovative approaches and improve the performance efficiency of the quality management system (Y. M. Cheng, 2018).

2.10 SOFTWARE AND TOOLS USED IN RESEARCH

There are various software and tools that have been used during the performed research and this thesis and they are described here in detail.

2.10.1 Autodesk Revit

A graphical user interface (GUI) is a computer program that enables users to communicate with a computer with the use of some visuals. There are various GUI software's to work with BIM and major ones are Autodesk Revit, Graphisoft ArchiCAD, and there is some software like Nemetschek Allplan, BricsCAD, Edificius that are worth mentioning (Bouška, 2016). Autodesk Revit is specifically built for building information modeling (BIM) providing a complete architectural design and documentation solution, supporting all phases of design and all architectural drawings and schedules required for a building project, from massing and conceptual studies through the most detailed construction drawings and schedules (Zurich et al., 2013). Analytical modeling in BIM has been introduced with the Autodesk Revit environment. Well-documented API (Application Programming Interface) allows for seamless integration with other software. Dynamo is an extensive software operated through Revit. It is an interface between the visual programming environment and Revit API (Salamak et al., 2018).

In our developed system, GUI enables a user to access the BIM software tool to get the desired QR-codes from the building model. A model screen will provide the user view of the project. Buttons have been incorporated into the tool for executing various programmed scripts for the user's ease.

2.10.2 Quick Response Code (QR-Code)

The Quick Response Code (QR-Code) is the most widely used twodimensional barcode in the world, and it has been successfully applied in many applications in manufacturing and construction (Chou & Wang, 2020). A Quick Response Code (QR-Code) is a type of matrix bar code or two-dimensional code designed to be read by smartphones. The code consists of black modules arranged in a square pattern on a white background. The information encoded may be text, a URL (Uniform Resource Locator), or other data [71][72]. The larger amount of information QR-Code contains, the greater the number of pixels. It must also have a minimal resolution performance to allow pixel dis-crimination to recognize pixel patterns. QR-Code allows users to enter a variety of information, but depending upon the information, the number of pixels required will also increase proportionally. Therefore, if high-capacity information is entered into the QR-Code, a highresolution device is required to recognize the QR-Code. Conversely, the minimal information required for object recognition reduces the number of pixels in QR-Code. The recognition rate of the QR-Code increases if the number of pixels used is less [73].

2.10.3 Wamp Server and MariaDB (RDBMS)

WampServer is a Windows web development environment. It allows you to create web applications with Apache2, PHP, and a MySQL database. Alongside, PhpMyAdmin allows you to easily manage your database (WampServer).

RDBMS stores data in the form of tables, with most commercial relational database management systems using Structured Query Language (SQL) to access the database (Relational Database Management System). MariaDB is developed as open-source software and as a relational database, it provides an SQL interface for accessing data (MariaDB Server).

This chapter describes the literature about construction quality. Importance of construction quality in the construction industry of any country. Construction quality comprises of two parts quality assurance and quality control. This chapter describes What construction quality control is and what does it do, how important it is in the construction industry. It describes the issues of construction quality and construction quality control. After that, it describes the identified issues and inefficiencies reported in the literature. The identified issues and inefficiencies have been ranked according to their literature score. After that benefits of introducing automation and BIM in construction quality control, reporting and repository were identified. Later a cross matrix was prepared of issues and inefficiencies vs benefits. It was performed to check if the introduction of automation and BIM in the traditional benefits will mitigate the identified issues and inefficiencies. Based on the above-realized benefits a methodology and framework will be devised in the next chapter.

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 INTRODUCTION

This chapter describes the methodology for achieving the objectives which are described in Chapter 1. The research is designed in compliance with the detailed research process (including literature review, framework development, validation, and evaluation).

3.2 RESEARCH DESIGN

With the formulation of a basic workflow chart research gap analysis was initiated, the study of existing knowledge was carried out, after a critical review of literature a research gap was identified. The problem statement was defined, and topic selection was performed. With the help of a preliminary study, research objectives were formulated. the methodology of this research is given in Figure 2 Methodology.

For the first objective of our research, a detailed literature review has been carried out from several research articles to identify the issues that exist in our construction quality control repository. The obtained issues have been grouped due to their overlapping nature and have been ranked according to their total literature score.

We studied the construction quality control repository and issues that occur in the traditional process and in the literature to eradicate the inefficiencies identified in the first phase. To achieve the second objective, the elements of the framework are to be decided following the construction quality control repository. The contents shall include construction quality control repository, BIM, and automation. These features will be sub-divided in detail on basis of the construction quality control repository procedure.

To achieve the last objective this framework will be evaluated by implementing the designed model on a construction site and obtaining the difference between the traditional and automated reporting procedure and getting experts' opinions on the developed system. The identified inefficiencies in the conventional construction quality control repository as literature review was performed and then the benefits of automation in construction quality reporting were identified with the extensive literature review. After comparing and analyzing both the issues and benefits a comparison matrix was formed and it was found out that most of the identified issues and inefficiencies can be covered successfully with the help of realized benefits.



Figure 2 Methodology

3.3 FRAMEWORK

To achieve automation in the construction quality control reporting and repository a BIM-based framework has been developed which is given in Figure 3 Framework. The developed framework is a BIM-based framework for smart and better working of our system. When a construction project begins, its virtual model is made for visual purposes and its schedule is made for a better understanding of the project timeline.



Figure 3 Framework

BIM-QRC Plugin

The developed framework starts with a 3D BIM model of a project. The scope of our work is strictly restricted to major concrete elements which are foundation raft, column, beam, and slab. Hence the model only contains these elements. What the system does is that it collects all the concrete elements from the model and makes groups of them level-wise.

QR-Codes

After the grouping, it then arranges them according to their level number and makes a list of them so that it can be used in the generation of QR codes. The system then asks for a project schedule excel file. From the project schedule, it filters the concrete activities according to their date of pouring, and then it generates its list based on the dates in which it groups them like the groups of the concrete elements from the model previously. Then it combines the generated list of schedules with the list of concrete element groups and inserts it into the QR code generator which then generates the QR codes of those groups with the respective date of their use and exports them to a selected folder.

Concrete Cylinder

The generated QR-Codes are then printed and the pasting of QR-Codes on the concrete cylinders begins. The QR-Codes are pasted onto concrete cylinders according to their dates of pouring, as QR-Codes are present in the folder with the date of their respective pouring of concrete element as shown in Figure 4. The system then takes the next step of taking data from the laboratory.



Figure 4 Dated QR-Codes

Laboratory

In the next step, cylinders are taken to the library where tests will be performed on them. First, they are scanned with a QR-Code reader that could be a smartphone or a computer-based QR-Code reader. Then after reading the code the data appears which was stored into the QR-Code. Concrete compressive strength tests are performed on the concrete cylinders, the laboratory technician then inputs the results obtained from laboratory tests into the webpage interface which was opened earlier by scanning QR code. When all the data is put on the webpage interface it then uploads it to the backend SQL-based database. Which then stores all data provided. And it can be very useful in retrieving that data when and where needed. The results can also be viewed on a dashboard that is linked to the database and can export data as a CSV file containing all the information.

Visualization

After generation of the Database CSV file, it is then inserted into the developed BIM-based Visualization engine which then displays all the failed concrete elements in a Red color-coded form, and they can be easily visualized in the BIM Model.

This chapter describes the methodology adopted for the research work in detail and describes the adopted framework, its formulation, and its working in detail with the briefing of each section in detail. In the next chapter, we will develop a system based on the devised framework from this chapter.

Chapter 4

SYSTEM PROTOTYPE

4.1 INTRODUCTION

This chapter aims to describe the system prototype QIM-BIM. It has been created following the proposed framework in Chapter 3. All the system prototype functions are developed based on a/the system framework. A tool was integrated in Autodesk Revit 2020 with the help of supplementary software such as Dynamo and Dyno-browser. A web-based application was also developed using Personal Home Page (PHP), Structured Query Language (SQL), and Relational Database Management System (RDBMS). The prototype QIM-BIM consists of two parts:

- BIM-QRC (BIM-based Quick Response Code)
- ACQCR (Automated Construction Quality Control Repository)

4.2 BIM-QRC

A BIM-QRC tool was developed in Autodesk Revit 2020 with the help of supplementary software Dynamo and Dyno Browser based on Figure 5 BIM-QRC Framework.



Figure 5 BIM-QRC Framework

4.2.1 Create Parameters

In Revit, some project parameters are predefined in the system, and it is open to the user to define some more parameters as desired. Using Dynamo visual programming a script was developed as shown in Figure 6 Dynamo script - Create Parameters.



Figure 6 Dynamo script - Create Parameters

This script inserts "Element ID" and "Concrete Strength" as parameters into the project. For user ease a button named "Create Parameters" is developed using dyno browser which runs the desired dynamo script as shown in Figure 7 Insert Parameters.



Figure 7 Insert Parameters

When the user inserts the desired parameters and their values, the system then displays the inserted parameters into the identity data tab as shown in Figure 8 Parameters.

Identity Data	\$
Image	
Comments	
Mark	
Element ID	215583
Concrete Strength (Psi)	3200

Figure 8 Parameters

4.2.2 Element IDs

In Revit, metadata (i.e., data of data, such as Element ID) is defined for each of the building objects, and thus the object data (such as geometry and materials) of every object is identifiable in the game engine. A Revit plugin was made that transfers all the required data and corresponding metadata to a QR Code. QR Code shows that for each selected key in metadata (in our case we used Element ID), the complete object data is accessible, such as the position and materials of the object with the given Element ID (Du et al., 2018). Every element has an element id which is assigned by Revit itself. Anyone can see the element id of the desired element by selecting it and going to the Manage tab and then clicking the "IDs of Selection" button as shown in Figure 9 IDs of Selection.



Figure 9 IDs of Selection

It reveals the element id of the selected element. So, to make it more convenient a dynamo script is developed with which we can insert element ids into the "Element ID" parameter, so element id is available in the properties where all other parameters are available. The parameter can be seen in Figure 8 Parameters with the element id of some element from the model. The dynamo script is available in the following Figure 10 Dynamo script – Element IDs.



Figure 10 Dynamo script – Element IDs

4.2.3 Concrete Strength

To introduce concrete compressive strength into concrete elements in Revit a dynamo script is developed which adds a parameter named "Concrete Strength (Psi)" into Revit. Concrete elements in every project have desired compressive strength depending upon various factors i.e., type of project, load, etc. Depending upon the type of concrete element in the project its strength is kept as required in the project. Users can add required concrete compressive strength, in psi, into the concrete elements depending upon the project requirements. So, a dynamo script is developed to insert the concrete compressive strength into the model elements of BIM and the script is given in following Figure 11 Dynamo script - Insert Concrete Strength (Psi).



Figure 11 Dynamo script - Insert Concrete Strength (Psi)

The dynamo script is linked up with a button, this button has been developed using dyno browser, which allows the user to enter required concrete strength into the elements as required and it is shown in Figure 12 Required Concrete Strength. The user will enter the required concrete strength of the model elements in Psi and the user will have the ability to enter the separate values for the foundation raft, columns, beams, and slabs. When the user will press the set values button the system will automatically assign the concrete strength values to the model elements.

🖺 Data-Shapes Multi	Input UI ++	\times
Required C	ompressive Strength (Psi)	
Foundation Raft]
Columns]
Beams and Slab]
	Set Values	1

Figure 12 Required Concrete Strength UI

4.2.4 Generate QRC

A Quick Response Code (QR-Code) is a type of matrix bar code or twodimensional code designed to be read by smartphones as shown in Figure 13.



Figure 13 QR-Code

The code consists of black modules arranged in a square pattern on a white background. The information encoded may be text, a URL (Uniform Resource Locator), or other data [59][60]. The larger amount of information QR-Code contains, the greater the number of pixels. It must also have a minimal resolution performance to allow pixel dis-crimination to recognize pixel patterns. QR-Code allows users to enter a variety of information, but depending upon the information, the number of pixels required will also increase proportionally. Therefore, if high-capacity information is entered into the QR-Code, a high-resolution device is required to recognize the QR-Code. Conversely, the minimal information required for object recognition reduces the number of pixels in QR-Code. The recognition rate of the QR-Code increases if the number of pixels used is less. [61].

A dynamo script is developed which generates the QR Codes of the grouped concrete elements according to the project schedule concerning the pouring dates of concrete and is shown in Figure 14 Dynamo script - Generate QR-Codes. First, the system asks for the project schedule file and then generates the list of QR codes, respectively.



Figure 14 Dynamo script - Generate QR-Codes

This script linked up with a button using dyno browser as shown in Figure 25 BIM-QRC. When Generate QRC button is clicked it opens a UI that asks for the project schedule file as shown in the following Figure 15 Generate QRC UI.

💶 Data-Shapes	Multi Input UI ++	×
Project \$	Schedule	
	FilePath	
	_	
x	Set Values	

Figure 15 Generate QRC UI

In our project QR Code contains information such as Element ID, timestamp, compressive strength of concrete, and a link for a web-based application that uploads data into the database which will be discussed later in the chapter.

4.3 ACQCR

ACQCR is the second part of our developed prototype, and it is based on a devised framework which is given in Figure 16. This part of the system prototype deals with the laboratory part of our project. The tests performed in the laboratory produce data, ACQCR deals with that data and storage of that data.



Figure 16 Laboratory - Framework

The data is entered into a webpage and after uploading, it stores the entered data into the database. This database is suitable for remote access and gets rid of burdensome paperwork. This webpage interface is developed on Visual Studio Code with back-end programming of PHP, for visual purposes only some part of the code is shown in Figure 17 PHP Programming.



Figure 17 PHP Programming

A webpage interface is developed, from this code, for ease of use as shown in Figure 18 Webpage Interface. It is used to record results from the laboratory testing after scanning of QR-Code from Concrete Cylinder which will provide us with the stored information. After opening the weblink the developed webpage interface will appear where the user will enter the data.



Figure 18 Webpage Interface

It can be used to take data as input from laboratory or testing sites where concrete compressive strength tests will be performed. The selection of required elements to be put into the webpage has been made from studying various lab reports and some other have been added like "Element ID" which were must for our system to work effectively. Users can input information in the webpage interface such as serial number, dates, laboratory, type of test performed, element id, required concrete compressive strength in psi, attained concrete compressive strength in psi, and result. Values of some of these are readily available in the QR code information when it is scanned like timestamp, element id, required concrete compressive strength in psi, and webpage link.

The Add Entry button is also present which stores the data into the database (RDBMS) based on MariaDB as shown in Figure 19. Users can also view all the results by clicking the "Dashboard" button as shown in Figure 18. It then takes the user to the next interface of the dashboard as shown in Figure 21.

V	Ta	ble structure	Relation view	N									
	#	Name	Туре	Collation	Attributes	Null	Default	Comments	Extra		Action		
כ	1	id 🔌	int(100)			No	None		AUTO_	INCREMENT	🥜 Change	🔵 Drop	▼ More
	2	sr_no	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	i	No	None				🥜 Change	🔵 Drop	▼ More
	3	Date Of Pouring	varchar(1000)	latin1_swedish_c	l.	No	None				🥜 Change	🔵 Drop	▼ More
	4	Date Of Test	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	i	No	None				🥜 Change	🔵 Drop	▼ More
0	5	laboratory	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	1	No	None				🔗 Change	😂 Drop	▼ More
]	6	Type Of Test	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	i	No	None				🖉 Change	🔵 Drop	▼ More
	7	Element_ID	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	1	No	None				🖉 Change	😂 Drop	▼ More
)	8	Required Strength	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	i	No	None				🥜 Change	🔵 Drop	▼ More
כ	9	Attained Strength	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	i	No	None				🥜 Change	😂 Drop	▼ More
	10	Result	varchar(1024)	latin1_swedish_c	i	No	None				🥜 Change	😂 Drop	▼ More
t	<u> </u>	Check all Wit	h selected:	Browse 🥜 Cł	nange 🥥 (Drop	🔑 Prim	nary 😈 Ur	iique	🐖 Index 🛛	Fulltext		

Figure 19 Database

MariaDB is an advanced form of MySQL which uses RDBMS instead of Database Management System (DBMS). To view data from the database a second webpage interface is known as "Dashboard" is also developed using Visual Studio Code with back-end PHP programming as shown in Figure 20. The developed "Dashboard" from this code can be seen in the Figure 21.

🕈 ind	exphp •
c:>w	amp64 > www > QRCode > 😻 index.php
1	<loctype html=""></loctype>
2	(html)
3	<pre>chead></pre>
4	<meta charset="utf-8"/>
5	<pre><meta content="width-device-width,initial-scale=1" name="viewport"/></pre>
6	<pre><link href="https://unpkg.com/tailwindcsg@^1.0/dist/tailwind.min.css" rel="stylesheet"/></pre>
7	<pre><link href="https://cdn.datatables.net/1.10.21/css/jquery.dataTables.css" rel="stylesheet" type="text/css"/></pre>
8	<script charset="utf8" src="https://cdn.datatables.net/1.10.21/js/jquery.dataTables.js" type="text/javascript"></script>
9	
10	<pre><link href="https://cdn.datatables.net/1.10.19/css/jquery.dataTables.min.css" rel="stylesheet" type="text/css"/></pre>
11	<script language="javascript" src="https://code.jquery.com/jquery-3.3.1.js" type="text/javascript"></script>
12	<pre><script language="javascript" src="<u>https://cdn.datatables.net/1.10.19/js/jquery.dataTables.min.js</u>" type="text/javascript"></script></pre>
13	<pre><script class="init" type="text/javascript">\$(document).ready(function() {\$("#table_id').DataTable();});</script></pre>
14	
15	<pre>ctitle>Cluil</pre>
16	
17	<body></body>
18	<pre><header 00="" body-tont="" class-="" text-gray-=""></header></pre>
19	<pre><(1v class="container mx-auto flex-flex-wrap p-5 flex-col md;flex-row ltems-center"></pre>
20	<pre>(a class= tlax tile=tont font-meduan items-center text_gray-sed mo-4 minute items/ items</pre>
21	<pre>csvg xmins= http://www.ws.org/zeed/svg till= none stroke= currentcionor stroke-inecap= round stroke-inejoin= round stroke-width= 2 class= w-10 h-10 text-white p-2 og-indigo</pre>
22	(June)
23	(JSR) (rong clares"=1.2 tast x1*s(inil/(rong)
24	cspan classe mi-s (ext-xi)civit(/span)
25	
20	Znaw clare_"md.ml.auto flav flav woon itoms contan toxt base dustifu contan".
28	(for class-multi-actor lak lak-map latens-tencer text-base justify-tencer /
29	(input type="ulmit" name="clear" value="clear All Records" />
30	
31	<pre></pre>
32	
33	
34	
35	
36	
37	
38	<table_id="table_id" class="display"></table_id="table_id">
39	<pre><thead></thead></pre>
40	

Figure 20 PHP Programming

					IVII					
			Clear A	ll Records Dov	vnload as Excel					
Show	Show 10 ventries Search:									
ID 🔺	Sr. No.	Date Of Pouring	Date Of ∲ Test	Lab 🕴	Type Of Test	Element ID	Required Strength	Attained Strength	Result 🛊	
88	1	12-06- 2021	10-07- 2021	Field Laboratory	Concrete Cylinder Compression Test	218857	5000	5308	Pass	
89	2	12-06- 2021	10-07- 2021	Field Laboratory	Concrete Cylinder Compression Test	218857	5000	5379	Pass	
90	3	12-06- 2021	10-07- 2021	Field Laboratory	Concrete Cylinder Compression Test	218857	5000	5697	Pass	
Showing 1 to 3 of 3 entries										

Figure 21 Dashboard

Its purpose is to serve as the platform for viewing data and can be called a Dashboard. This dashboard takes the results from the database (RDBMS), and it can export all data as a CSV file by clicking on the "Download as Excel" button, which can be used in the BIM-QCR for visualization of failed concrete elements in the Revit Model.

4.4 VISUALIZE

Visualization is the key function of our system. Its framework is given in framework on which the visualization engine will be developed.



Figure 22 Visualization Framework

To visualize the failed concrete elements in the compressive strength test, a dynamo script is developed which is shown in the following Figure 24 Dynamo script - Visualization. This script takes the database CSV file as input from the desired location, as shown in Figure 23 Visualize button UI, selected by the user, and then after comparing the test results with the required values of concrete strength stored in the model previously, the engine then color-codes the elements into red which have failed to meet the required concrete compressive strength criteria and then updates the BIM model.



Figure 23 Visualize button UI



Figure 24 Dynamo script - Visualization

This script is linked up with a button that is made using dyno browser as shown in Figure 25. When this button is clicked opens a dialogue box that asks for the database file to run the script on it and shows the results in the Revit model.

4.5 BIM-QRC TOOLBAR

A toolbar was made in Autodesk Revit named "BIM-QRC" with the help of Dynamo and Dyno-browser, to access the functions of the system and it is shown in Figure 25 BIM-QRC. Dynamo has been used to do the background visual coding and its scripting and Dyno-browser has been used to develop the buttons, assign them names and icons. Separate groups of buttons were also made in the ribbon for an easier understanding of tasks to be performed via the tool. The first group named "Insert Parameters" contains buttons for the creation of parameters and inserting the required values in them. The second group named "QR Code" contains buttons that create QR Codes. The third group named "Visualize" contains buttons that help in the visualization of failed elements. All the buttons that were created are explained below.



Figure 25 BIM-QRC toolbar

Dynamo was used for Visual programming purposes that were provided with the back-end Python programming. Only the nodes available in the open-source packages were used to achieve the desired outcome.

In brief, the whole system works in a stepwise fashion where every button performs a specific function. The first button creates the required parameters. The second button inserts element IDs as a parameter. The third button inserts required concrete strength in model elements. The fourth button generates the QR codes of concrete elements. After scanning QR codes, the results are put into the web-based developed system. Then using the last button failed concrete elements can be visualized in the BIM model.

Chapter 5

EVALUATION AND RESULTS

5.1 CASE STUDY

For the validation and evaluation of this system, we took two case studies. The validation was done with the case study and later the system was evaluated using the opinion of field experts and laboratory engineers. All the results are explained in this chapter. A public sector office building project of Pakistan (Pakistan Engineering Council, Regional Office Lahore, Punjab) was targeted as a test case model project. It is preferable to demonstrate BIM features to stakeholders on public sector projects, for its implementation [78].

The system was initiated with the development of the BIM model as shown in Figure 26 Case Study BIM Model and it has all the details as required by our designed framework whose scope is to basic concrete work and major basic elements of concrete i.e., Foundation raft, Column, Beam, and Slab. The model of the case study was developed according to the predefined scope of our work in Autodesk Revit.



Figure 26 Case Study BIM Model

In the BIM-QRC plugin first parameters were created, using the "Create Parameters" button present on the ribbon in the "Insert Parameters" group, which is required for the plugin. The parameters are named "Element ID" and "Concrete Strength (Psi)" as shown in Figure 8. After that using the plugin element IDs were inserted into the parameter using the insert "Element IDs" button as defined in the previous chapter in detail. Required concrete compressive strength was put in according to the project requirement as shown in Figure 8, using the "Concrete Strength (Psi)" button present in the ribbon. In the first case study the required compressive strength of concrete for foundation raft, beam, and slab is 4000 psi and for columns is 5000 psi as shown in Figure 27 Inserting Concrete Strength and Figure 28 Inserted Concrete Strength.



Figure 27 Inserting Concrete Strength



Figure 28 Inserted Concrete Strength

To generate the QR-Codes, a button named "Generate QRC" was clicked. It opened a UI that asked for the project schedule excel file as shown in Figure 29, the system generates QR codes in the predefined folder as shown in the following Figure 30.

File Architecture Stru	icture Steel	Systems	Insert	Annotate	Analyze	Massing & Site	Collaborate	View	Manage	Add-Ins	BIM-QRC	Modify
ià: (H)	n: 🦉		1									
			r									
Create Parameters Element	Concrete Ger	nerate Visua	lize									
IDs	Strength C	2RC										
Insert Parameters	QR	Code Visua	lize									
Properties			×G	{3D}	×							
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·												
				Data-Shap	es Multi Inj	put 01 + +		~				
3D View			-	Drojos	t Caba	dulo			~			
				Flojec	t ache	uule			1			
3D View: {3D}		🗸 🔠 Edit T	ype					_				
Graphics			*			FilePath			N. 11	1		
View Scale	Custom									1		
Scale Value 1:	100											
Detail Level	Medium									\sim		-
Parts Visibility	Show Original			find the little					1 0		~ ~	
Visibility/Graphics Overrides	Ed	it		X –		Sel	t Values				~	
Graphic Display Options	Ed	it							ľ	\diamond	10	à
Discipline	Coordination									>		
Show Hidden Lines	By Discipline										\diamond	
Default Analysis Display St	None				1	1 1			4	<	>	\sim
Sun Path				o	1			Ve.				
Extents			*	4-1-	1	11			~	\diamond	A	4
Crop View				0.		· / / 1		The	R			
Crop Region Visible				0	1 1			\mathbb{A}				
Annotation Crop				- ST	1	11						- 41
Far Clip Active					- /			×	W.			
Far Clip Offset	1000' 0"			Contra de la contr	1 1							AL
Scope Box	None			6	1	11						
Section Box				0	1 1	· _ /		×				
Camera			*	0	1	111						1

Figure 29 Inserting Project Schedule

Model 1 QRC						- 🗆 ×
						~ (?)
	1	~ 0	Search 1	Vlodel 1 QRC		
S April 07	S April 18	🕏 🛛 August 09	August 19	💿 R August 30	R December 02	⊘ A December 13
R December 23	R February 03	R February 14	R February 24	🥥 🖄 January 03	💿 🔍 January 13	⊘ A January 24
🗢 🕾 July 19	🥏 🔉 July 29	A March 07	Ø A March 17	A March 28	R November 01	R November 11
	💿 ନ October 11	⊘ A October 21	⊘ ℜ September 09	R September 20	September 30	V
						11 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

Figure 30 Generated QR codes

After the generation of QR codes, they were pasted onto the concrete cylinders, and then the QR codes present on them were scanned in the laboratory. After scanning them and clicking on the link appeared it opened a webpage. The webpage asked for the information required as shown in Figure 18. After putting up all the results into the webpage and clicking on "Add Entry" it then stored it onto the database. Some of the tests were performed and results were put on the database following the same procedure. All the results uploaded for the case study can be seen in the dashboard as shown in the following Figure 31.

		Civil							Clear All Reco	Records Download as Excel			
Show 1	10 💙 ent	ries								Se	earch:		
ID A	Sr. No.	Date Of Pouring	Date Of Test	Lab	÷	Type Of Test	¢	Element ID	Required Strength	¢	Attained Strength	¢	Result 🛊
88	1	12-06-2021	10-07-2021	Field Laboratory		Concrete Cylinder Compression Test	21	18857	5000	:	5308	ſ	Pass
89	2	12-06-2021	10-07-2021	Field Laboratory		Concrete Cylinder Compression Test	21	18857	5000	1	5379	ſ	Pass
90	3	12-06-2021	10-07-2021	Field Laboratory		Concrete Cylinder Compression Test	21	18857	5000		5697	ſ	Pass
Showin	a 1 to 3 o	f 3 entries									Previous	1	Next

Figure 31 Dashboard

For visualization of the failed concrete elements, the database was exported into a CSV file using the button "Download as Excel". It then exported the database file as CSV into the predefined folder.

After clicking on the "Visualize" button in the Revit QRC tab it then asked for the database CSV file as shown in Figure 32.

File	Architecture	Structure	Steel	Systems	Insert	Annotate	Analyze	Massing & Site	Collaborate	View	Manage	Add-Ins	BIM-QRC	Modify
	in G	A m		a 🔥										
	194 (H	£) 🚢	<u>i</u> ox	<u>s</u>										
Create	Parameters Eler	ment Concre	te Gener	ate Visual	ize									
	1	Ds Streng	th QR	C										
	Insert Parame	eters	QR C	ode Visual	ize									
Properti	es				X	} {3D}	×							
~						🍠 Data-Shap	es Multi In	put UI ++		>	<			
1 D	3D View				-		cover in our							
~						Impor	t Datab	oase Excel	CSV File	!				
3D Viev	v: {3D}		~	Edit Ty	pe					_		1		
Graphic	s				*			FilePath				1		
View S	cale	Custo	m								\sim	1	1	
Scale V	alue 1:	100											· ` ·	
Detail I	Level	Mediu	m									~	1	1
Parts V	isibility	Show	Original								1 0		2	. `
Visibili	ty/Graphics Over	rrides	Edit.			-		E	xecute					1
Graphi	c Display Option	S	Edit.								ſ	\diamond		à
Discipl	ine	Coord	ination			- N2					<	>	20	~
Show H	Hidden Lines	By Dis	cipline										0	1
Default	t Analysis Display	/ St None				21	1	11			0	<	>	À
Sun Pa	th					Protection	1			Ve.		020		
Extents					*	4	1	11				<u>ہ</u>	A	" H
Crop V	iew					0	1			<u>₩</u>	R			
Crop R	egion Visible					0	1 1			\mathbb{V}				
Annota	ation Crop					61	1	11						
Far Clip	p Active					0	1 1		≤ 1	¥K.	W.			
Far Cli	o Offset	1000'	0"			or	1							X
Scope	Box	None				11	1	11						
Section	n Box					0	11		K MK 1	W.	\checkmark			
Camera					*	office	1	11						X

Figure 32 Visualize Case Study

Processing the data from the CSV file and the data from the BIM model it then decided which concrete groups have failed the predefined criteria. After accessing the data, the system then color codes them and displays them in the Revit model as shown in the following figure.

5.2 EVALUATION RESULTS

After successful testing of the working of the developed system prototype on two case studies, it was then evaluated using the opinion of field experts and laboratory engineers. Experts were provided with the implementation of BIM-QRC-ACQCR on real projects model as a test case. Semi-structured interviews were then carried out with 15 experts. A ratio of 60:40 was adopted between the number of field experts and laboratory engineers. Results of the expert's reviews sessions are discussed in the following subsections.

5.2.1 Results of Semi-Structured Interviews

The expert's response to questions related to the need of BIM-QRC-ACQCR in the construction industry, the usability of the interface, possible implementation,

and overall efficiency to improve traditional practices of construction quality control repository.



Figure 33 Experts' response on NEED

As shown in Figure 33, out of 15 experts, a dominant 80% (47% Strongly agree and 33% agree) thought that there is a need for such a technologically advanced system in the construction industry, while 20% of the experts remained un-decided. Encouragingly, none of the experts disagreed with its need in the construction industry.



Figure 34 Experts' response on USABILITY

As shown in Figure 34, out of 15 experts, 20% Strongly agree and 40% agree that such a system in the construction industry would be easy to use, while 7% of the experts remained undecided. And 33% of the experts disagreed with its useability in the construction industry.



Figure 35 Experts' response on IMPLEMENTATION

As shown in Figure 35, out of 15 experts, 7% Strongly agree and a dominant 67% agree that such a system in the construction industry can be implemented, while 13% of the experts remained undecided. And 13% of the experts disagreed with its implementation in the construction industry.



Figure 36 Experts' response on EFFICIENCY

As shown in Figure 36, a dominant 73% of experts considered it as an efficient tool to improve the EOT claim management process, however, 27% thought that if it is implemented it may or may not improve the overall performance of the construction quality control repository.

5.2.2 Experts Feedback on The System's Potential

Table 6 Scored Inefficiencies Groups shows the mean value, RII value, and ranking of the issues which can be effectively resolved using the developed BIM-QRC-ACQCR. It is obtained using the experts' opinion, collected on a 5-point Likert scale (with 1 representing 'Strongly Disagree' to 5 representing 'Strongly Agree'). The obtained score on a 5-point Likert scale was analyzed and their mean score was found out and based on which the Relative Importance Index (RII) value was found out for all issues and inefficiencies group as given in Table 6. After that, they were arranged according to their RII Value and given in Table 7.

Sr.	Grouped Inefficiencies	Mean Score	RII Value
1	Hectic Paperwork	4.133	0.827
2	Prone to Errors	3.467	0.693
3	Inefficient information update & sharing	4.667	0.933
4	Poor data maintenance	4.533	0.907
5	High complexity	2.933	0.587
6	Time Consuming	4.600	0.920
7	Increased Cost	3.467	0.693
8	Malpractice	4.267	0.853

Table 6 Scored Inefficiencies Groups

Table 7 Ranked Inefficiencies Groups

Rank	Grouped Inefficiencies	RII Value
1	Inefficient information update & sharing	0.933
2	Time Consuming	0.920
3	Poor data maintenance	0.907
4	Malpractice	0.853
5	Hectic Paperwork	0.827
6	Increased Cost	0.693
7	Prone to Errors	0.693
8	High complexity	0.587

5.2.3 Discussion on Experts Scores

During semi-structured interviews, the expert panel expressed their views on the stated inefficiencies. Key comments are discussed below:

In the Inefficient information update and sharing group, dominantly all the experts believed that this group of inefficiencies can be completely covered with the developed system due to its nature of being versatile in terms of usage of technologies like web-based systems. Overall, this group is ranked 1st. In a *time*consuming group, experts highly believed that this group of inefficiencies can be largely covered with the developed system due to the integration of technologies like BIM and Web. They believed that time is an essential component in any construction project and saving time in any project would be of great success. The Poor data *maintenance* group is the 3rd group overall, and in this group, experts scored (strongly agree and agree), and results show they strongly believe that this inefficiencies group can be covered with the developed system. As per RII values, all the issues belonging to this group are reduced by more than 90%. In the *Malpractice* group experts highly believed that it can be covered with this developed system and would help in reducing the number of issues occurring due to this. This group is ranked 4th on the list. In the *Hectic paperwork* group, the average score of experts indicates most experts scored favorably (strongly agree and agree), hence BIM-QRC-ACQCR can considerably solve all documentation-related issues in the construction quality control repository. Overall, this group is ranked 5th and as per RII values, all the issues belonging to this group are reduced by more than 80%. In the Prone to errors group, the average score of experts indicates most experts scored (agree and neutral), which shows that some believed that the grouped inefficiencies can be covered with the developed system, and some cannot be covered with the developed system. Overall, this group is ranked 6th. In the *high complexity* group, experts' scores remained neutral and disagree. They believed that this inefficiencies group is hard to tackle with the developed system and needs to improve in decision-making capabilities. In the increased cost group, experts scored between agreeing and neutral which indicates that they believed this inefficiencies group can be covered partially and is ranked 7th. Overall, the developed system is highly appreciated by the experts.

Chapter 6

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 CONCLUSION

Construction quality is not given importance as other aspects of a construction project and especially automation in construction quality has been lacking behind always in underdeveloped countries like Pakistan etc. It is considered least important in our traditional culture and construction practices. In the contemporary world of global competitiveness, it is very important to endorse construction quality, its every step, and processes that take place during the whole construction quality assurance and quality control. Automation is being adapted globally in every aspect of human life and all the benefits it provides are making everything easy for everyone. Adapting automation in construction projects especially in construction quality control would be fruitful in improving time consumption, cost savings, and overall a clean procedure. Though several research have been made to highlight the importance of construction quality and inclusion of automation in construction quality to improve its performance and effectiveness, yet still it needs more adoption towards construction quality control. Automation in the construction quality control repository is an aspect of the whole quality control process that has been endorsed in this research to enhance the adoption of automation.

As scored by experts, the inefficiencies that can be effectively tackled with the application of the developed framework are **Inefficient information update and sharing**, **Time consuming**, **and Poor data maintenance**. Most of the field experts pointed out that **malpractice** is quite common in our industry, but it can be mitigated if the proposed system is adopted.

Automation will not only help reduce the number of issues that have been mentioned in this research which have been found in the reported literature but will also bring benefits. Construction quality following the compliance of all the international standards is of immense importance. Pursuing automation in quality control will not only reduce the shortcomings in the whole process but will also help in its adoption where it is given the least importance. The construction quality reporting process is not as clean as some might think it is in underdeveloped countries where results can be easily manipulated hence bringing automation to it will make it more resistant to such malpractice causing hindrance in them. The traditional construction quality reporting process yields less performance in every aspect as compared to the introduced automated framework of the construction quality control repository in this research. The major factors that have been highlighted in the results are time, information sharing, data maintenance, etc., which are improved with the adoption of a new automated framework. Thus, the system devised proves to be an effective one when compared with the conventional practices that are used in construction quality control repositories.

6.2LIMITATIONS

First and foremost, this study was limited to specific material concrete because with the increase in the number of materials the complexity of system increases. Secondly, the prepared model of BIM did not include all the concrete elements as it becomes more complex with the increasing number of model elements and aligning schedule with them. At the end, this study was performed on local network due to difficult management of an online network.

6.3 FUTURE RECOMMENDATIONS

This research was focused on bringing automation into construction quality control reporting and repository with focused material i.e., concrete. Further research can include other materials. In this study QR codes were used, further research can include RFID tags. The developed system is aimed to deal with the execution phase of construction only. On the contrary, it can also be used for the design stage reporting i.e., borehole log reports and soil testing, etc.

REFERENCES

Abdel-Razek, R. H. (1998). Factors affecting construction quality in Egypt: identification and relative importance.

About MariaDB Server - MariaDB.org. (n.d.). Retrieved June 30, 2021, from https://mariadb.org/about/

Achkar, E. (2017a). A BIM-integrated approach to construction quality management enabling information and knowledge management during the execution phase of a project life cycle.

Achkar, E. (2017b). A BIM-integrated approach to construction quality management enabling information and knowledge management during the execution phase of a project life cycle.

Ahmed, S. M., Aoieong, R. T., Tang, S. L., & Zheng, D. X. M. (2005). A comparison of quality management systems in the construction industries of Hong Kong and the USA. *International Journal of Quality and Reliability Management*, 22(2), 149–161. https://doi.org/10.1108/02656710510577215

Akinci, B., Boukamp, F., Gordon, C., Huber, D., Lyons, C., & Park, K. (2006). A formalism for utilization of sensor systems and integrated project models for active construction quality control. *Automation in Construction*, *15*(2), 124–138. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2005.01.008

Ali, B., Zahoor, H., Mazher, K. M., & Maqsoom, A. (2018). BIM Implementation in Public Sector of Pakistan Construction Industry. *ICCREM 2018: Innovative Technology and Intelligent Construction - Proceedings of the International Conference on Construction and Real Estate Management 2018*, 42–51. https://doi.org/10.1061/9780784481721.005

Arditi, D., Arditi, D., & Gunaydin, H. M. (2015). Total quality management in the construction process Total quality management in the construction process. *International Journal of Project Management*, 7863(AUGUST 1997), 235–243. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0263-7863(96)00076-2

Azhar, S. (2011). Building information modeling (BIM): Trends, benefits, risks, and challenges for the AEC industry. *Leadership and Management in Engineering*, *11*(3), 241–252. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)LM.1943-5630.0000127

Bai, L. (2013). A BIM-integrated approach to construction quality management enabling information and knowledge management during the execution phase of a project life cycle. *Maryland*, 302.

Bakar, A. H. B. A., Ali, K. Bin, & Onyeizu, E. (2011). Total quality management practices in large construction companies: A case of Oman. *World Applied Sciences Journal*, *15*(2), 285–296.

Barrett, P. (2000). Systems and relationships for construction quality. *International Journal of Quality and Reliability Management*, *17*(4), 377–392. https://doi.org/10.1108/02656710010298409

Battikha, M. G. (2002). QUALICON: Computer-based system for construction quality management. *Journal of Construction Engineering and Management*, *128*(2), 164–173. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)0733-9364(2002)128:2(164)

Bayazit, O., & Karpak, B. (2007). An analytical network process-based framework for successful total quality management (TQM): An assessment of Turkish manufacturing industry readiness. *International Journal of Production Economics*, *105*(1), 79–96. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2005.12.009

Becerik-gerber, B., Asce, A. M., Jazizadeh, F., Li, N., & Calis, G. (2012). *Application Areas and Data Requirements for BIM-Enabled Facilities Management.* 138(March), 431–442. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)CO.1943-7862.0000433.

Borrmann, A., König, M., Koch, C., & Beetz, J. (2018). Building information modeling: Why? What? How? *Building Information Modeling: Technology Foundations and Industry Practice*, 1–24. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-92862-3_1

Bouška, R. (2016). Evaluation of Maturity of BIM Tools across Different Software Platforms. *Procedia Engineering*, *164*, 481–486. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2016.11.648

Chen, Y., & Kamara, J. M. (2011). A framework for using mobile computing for information management on construction sites. *Automation in Construction*, 20(7), 776–788. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2011.01.002

Cheng, Y. M. (2018). Building information modeling for quality management.ICEIS 2018 - Proceedings of the 20th International Conference on EnterpriseInformationSystems,2(Iceis),351–358.https://doi.org/10.5220/0006796703510358

Cheng, Y.-M. (2018a). Application of BIM on Documenting Construction Defects. *International Journal of Engineering and Technology*, *9*(5), 392–397. https://doi.org/10.7763/ijet.2017.v9.1005

Cheng, Y.-M. (2018b). *Building Information Modeling for Quality Management*. 2(Iceis), 351–358. https://doi.org/10.5220/0006796703510358

Cheng, Y.-M. (2018c). Building Information Modeling for Quality Management. 2(Iceis), 351–358. https://doi.org/10.5220/0006796703510358

Chin, S., Kim, K., & Kim, Y. S. (2004). A process-based quality management information system. *Automation in Construction*, *13*(2), 241–259. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2003.08.010 Chin-Keng, T. (2011). Study of Quality Management in Construction Projects. *Chinese Business Review*, 10(7), 542–552.

Chou, G. J., & Wang, R. Z. (2020). The Nested QR Code. *IEEE Signal Processing Letters*, 27, 1230–1234. https://doi.org/10.1109/LSP.2020.3006375

D.Ashokkumar. (2014). Study of Quality Management in Construction Industry. *International Journal of Innovative Research in Science, Engineering and Technology*, *3*(1), 36–43.

Du, J., Zou, Z., Shi, Y., & Zhao, D. (2018). Zero latency: Real-time synchronization of BIM data in virtual reality for collaborative decision-making. *Automation in Construction*, *85*, 51–64. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2017.10.009

East, E. W., Nisbet, N., & Liebich, T. (2013). Facility management handover model view. *Journal of Computing in Civil Engineering*, 27(1), 61–67. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)CP.1943-5487.0000196

Eloranta, E., Hameri, A. P., & Lahti, M. (2001). Improved project management through improved document management. *Computers in Industry*, 45(3), 231–243. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0166-3615(01)00099-9

Fernandez, O., Labib, A. W., Walmsley, R., & Petty, D. J. (2003a). A decision support maintenance management system: Development and implementation. *International Journal of Quality and Reliability Management*, 20(8), 965–979. https://doi.org/10.1108/02656710310493652

Fernandez, O., Labib, A. W., Walmsley, R., & Petty, D. J. (2003b). A decision support maintenance management system: Development and implementation. *International Journal of Quality and Reliability Management*, 20(8), 965–979. https://doi.org/10.1108/02656710310493652

Griffith, A. (2000). Integrated management systems: A single management system solution for project control? *Engineering, Construction and Architectural Management*, 7(3), 232–240. https://doi.org/10.1108/eb021148

Haupt, T. C., & Whiteman, D. E. (2004). Inhibiting factors of implementing total quality management on construction sites. *The TQM Magazine*, *16*(3), 166–173. https://doi.org/10.1108/09544780410532891

Hendrickson, C. (2008). *Project Management for Construction: Vol. 2.2* (Second Edition). http://pmbook.ce.cmu.edu/

Hijazi ETH Zurich, I., Meouche, E. R., & Ihab, H. (2013). *Integrating and managing BIM in GIS, software review Architecture and 3D CityModels View project BIM and GIS integration View project INTEGRATING AND MANAGING BIM IN GIS, SOFTWARE REVIEW*. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/280805122

Kalyan, T. S., Zadeh, P. A., Staub-French, S., & Froese, T. M. (2016). Construction Quality Assessment Using 3D as-built Models Generated with Project Tango.

 Procedia
 Engineering,
 145,
 1416–1423.

 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2016.04.178
 145,
 1416–1423.

Khan, A. H., Azhar, S., & Mahmood, A. (2008). Quality Assurance and Control in the Construction of Infrastructure Services in Developing Countries – A Case Study of Pakistan. *First International Conference on Construction in Developing Countries*, 109–120.

Khelifi, A., & Hesham, K. (2016). A Mobile Device Software to Improve Construction Sites Communications "MoSIC." *International Journal of Advanced Computer* Science and Applications, 7(11). https://doi.org/10.14569/ijacsa.2016.071108

Kim, C., Lim, H., & Kim, H. (2011). Mobile computing platform for construction site management. *Proceedings of the 28th International Symposium on Automation and Robotics in Construction, ISARC 2011*, 1164–1169. https://doi.org/10.22260/isarc2011/0213

Kim, J.-S., Yi, C.-Y., & Park, Y.-J. (2021). Image Processing and QR Code Application Method for Construction Safety Management. *Applied Sciences 2021*, *Vol. 11, Page 4400, 11*(10), 4400. https://doi.org/10.3390/APP11104400

Kivimäki, T., Heikkilä, R., Kivimäki, T., & Heikkilä, R. (2015). *Infra BIM Based Real-Time Quality Control of Infrastructure Construction Projects*. https://doi.org/10.22260/ISARC2015/0117

Lester, E. I. A. (2014). BIM. *Project Management, Planning and Control*, 503–521. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-08-098324-0.00052-4

Lin, Y. C., & Su, Y. C. (2013). Developing mobile- and BIM-based integrated visual facility maintenance management system. *The Scientific World Journal*, 2013. https://doi.org/10.1155/2013/124249

Lin, Y. C., Su, Y. C., & Chen, Y. P. (2014). Developing mobile BIM/2D barcodebased automated facility management system. *Scientific World Journal*, 2014. https://doi.org/10.1155/2014/374735

Lorenzo, T. M., Benedetta, B., Manuele, C., & Davide, T. (2014). BIM and QRcode. A Synergic Application in Construction Site Management. *Procedia Engineering*, 85, 520–528. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.PROENG.2014.10.579

Lou, J., Xu, J., & Wang, K. (2017). Study on Construction Quality Control of Urban Complex Project Based on BIM. *Procedia Engineering*, *174*, 668–676. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2017.01.215

Love, P. E. d. (2002). Auditing the indirect consequences of rework in construction: a case based approach. *Managerial Auditing Journal*, *17*(3), 138–146. https://doi.org/10.1108/02686900210419921 Love, P. E. D. (2002). Influence of project type and procurement method on rework costs in building construction projects. *Journal of Construction Engineering and Management*, *128*(1), 18–29. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)0733-9364(2002)128:1(18)

Love, P. E. D., & Irani, Z. (2003). A project management quality cost information system for the construction industry. *Information and Management*, 40(7), 649–661. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0378-7206(02)00094-0

Ma, Z., Cai, S., Mao, N., Yang, Q., Feng, J., & Wang, P. (2018). Construction quality management based on a collaborative system using BIM and indoor positioning. *Automation in Construction*, 92(September 2017), 35–45. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2018.03.027

Ma, Z., Lu, N., & Gu, W. (2008). A Decision Support System for Construction Projects Based on Standardized Exchanged Documents. *Tsinghua Science and Technology*, *13*(SUPPL. 1), 354–361. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1007-0214(08)70174-3

Mani, G. F., Feniosky, P. M., & Savarese, S. (2009). D4AR-A 4-dimensional augmented reality model for automating construction progress monitoring data collection, processing and communication. *Electronic Journal of Information Technology in Construction*, 14(June), 129–153.

Martinez, P., Ahmad, R., & Al-Hussein, M. (2019). Automatic Selection Tool of Quality Control Specifications for Off-site Construction Manufacturing Products: A BIM-based Ontology Model Approach. *Modular and Offsite Construction (MOC) Summit Proceedings*, 2017, 141–148. https://doi.org/10.29173/mocs87

Matthews, J., Love, P. E. D., Heinemann, S., Chandler, R., Rumsey, C., & Olatunj, O. (2015). Real time progress management: Re-engineering processes for cloudbased BIM in construction. *Automation in Construction*, *58*, 38–47. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2015.07.004

Nawaz, T., Professor, A., & Ali Ikram, A. (2013). Benefits and Impediments in Implementing Tqm in Pakistani Construction Sector. *European Journal of Business and Management*, 5(4), 2222–2839.

Nguyen, P. T., Vo, K. D., Phan, P. T., Huynh, V. D. B., Nguyen, T. A., Cao, T. M., Nguyen, Q. L. H. T. T., & Le, L. P. (2018a). Construction project quality management using building information modeling 360 field. *International Journal of Advanced Computer Science and Applications*, *9*(10), 228–233. https://doi.org/10.14569/IJACSA.2018.091028

Nguyen, P. T., Vo, K. D., Phan, P. T., Huynh, V. D. B., Nguyen, T. A., Cao, T. M., Nguyen, Q. L. H. T. T., & Le, L. P. (2018b). Construction project quality management using building information modeling 360 field. *International Journal of Advanced Computer Science and Applications*, *9*(10), 228–233. https://doi.org/10.14569/IJACSA.2018.091028

Quyen, N. L. H. T. T., Nguyen, P. T., & Huynh, V. D. B. (2017). A hybrid multi criteria decision analysis for engineering project manager evaluation. *International Journal of ADVANCED AND APPLIED SCIENCES*, 4(4), 49–52. https://doi.org/10.21833/ijaas.2017.04.008

Rajiv, S. R., & Harinath, S. (2018). Effectiveness of Total Quality Management in the Process of Construction. *International Journal of Applied Engineering Research*, 13(7), 85–88.

Reizgevičius, M., Ustinovičius, L., Cibulskieně, D., Kutut, V., & Nazarko, L. (2018). Promoting sustainability through investment in Building Information Modeling (BIM) technologies: A design company perspective. *Sustainability* (*Switzerland*), *10*(3). https://doi.org/10.3390/su10030600

Roh, S., Aziz, Z., & Peña-Mora, F. (2011). An object-based 3D walk-through model for interior construction progress monitoring. *Automation in Construction*, 20(1), 66–75. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2010.07.003

Salamak, M., Jasinski, M., Plaszczyk, T., & Zarski, M. (2018). ANALYTICAL MODELLING IN DYNAMO. https://doi.org/10.31490/tces-2018-0014

Shin, D., Jung, J., & Chang, B. (2012). Computers in Human Behavior The psychology behind QR codes : User experience perspective. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 28(4), 1417–1426. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2012.03.004

Tam, C. M., Deng, Z. M., Zeng, S. X., & Ho, C. S. (2000). Quest for continuousquality improvement for public housing construction in Hong Kong. ConstructionManagementandEconomics,18(4),437–446.https://doi.org/10.1080/01446190050024851

WampServer, la plate-forme de développement Web sous Windows - Apache, MySQL, PHP. (n.d.). Retrieved June 30, 2021, from https://www.wampserver.com/en/

Wang, D., Fan, J., Fu, H., & Zhang, B. (2018). Research on optimization of big data construction engineering quality management based on RnN-LSTM. *Complexity*, 2018. https://doi.org/10.1155/2018/9691868

Wang, J., Sun, W., Shou, W., Wang, X., Wu, C., Chong, H. Y., Liu, Y., & Sun, C. (2015a). Integrating BIM and LiDAR for Real-Time Construction Quality Control. *Journal of Intelligent and Robotic Systems: Theory and Applications*, 79(3–4), 417–432. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10846-014-0116-8

Wang, J., Sun, W., Shou, W., Wang, X., Wu, C., Chong, H. Y., Liu, Y., & Sun, C. (2015b). Integrating BIM and LiDAR for Real-Time Construction Quality Control. *Journal of Intelligent and Robotic Systems: Theory and Applications*, 79(3–4), 417–432. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10846-014-0116-8

Wang, L. C. (2008a). Enhancing construction quality inspection and management using RFID technology. *Automation in Construction*, *17*(4), 467–479. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2007.08.005

Wang, L. C. (2008b). Enhancing construction quality inspection and management using RFID technology. *Automation in Construction*, *17*(4), 467–479. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2007.08.005

What is a RDBMS (Relational Database Management System)? (n.d.). Retrieved June 30, 2021, from https://searchdatamanagement.techtarget.com/definition/RDBMS-relational-database-management-system

Xu, Z., Huang, T., Li, B., Li, H., & Li, Q. (2018). Developing an IFC-Based Database for Construction Quality Evaluation. *Advances in Civil Engineering*, 2018. https://doi.org/10.1155/2018/3946051

Zhiliang, M., Wong, K. D., Heng, L., & Jun, Y. (2005). Utilizing exchanged documents in construction projects for decision support based on data warehousing technique. *Automation in Construction*, *14*(3), 405–412. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.autcon.2004.08.016

Zhou, P., & El-Gohary, N. (2016). Ontology-based multilabel text classification of construction regulatory documents. *Journal of Computing in Civil Engineering*, *30*(4), 1–13. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)CP.1943-5487.0000530